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Telephone (801) 590-2600 | 1285 S. 1650 W. Suite 200, Woods Cross, UT 84087 

 

 
To the Board of Trustees 

Mt. Olympus Improvement District  

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mt. Olympus Improvement District (the 

District), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, and the related notes to the financial 

statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 

contents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of Mt. Olympus Improvement District as of December 31, 2024, and 2023, and the respective 

changes in financial position, and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 

further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 

accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 

events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a 

going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 

information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 

Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 

aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 

Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 

include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 

financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 

that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 

reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 

that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management 

discussion and analysis, schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of 

contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the 

responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 

for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 

have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 

management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 

with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 

obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 

assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 

express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 14, 2025 

on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 

The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 

an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal 

control over financial reporting and compliance. 

K&C, CPAs 
K&C, Certified Public Accountants 

Woods Cross, Utah 

April 14, 2025
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The District was formed in 1946 by the Salt Lake County Commission under state statutes as a 

Special District with the authority to levy taxes, issue bonds, and construct a sewage collection and 

treatment system. Since major construction in 1954, the District has operated its own sewer 

transmission lines and treatment facility until 1978, when the District entered into an Interlocal 

Agreement with four other local districts and two cities to create the Central Vall ey Water 

Reclamation Facility (CVWRF), a regionalized wastewater treatment facility in which the District 

owns a 24.29% undivided interest.  

On August 13, 2012, the District adopted a name change from Salt Lake City Suburban Sanitary 

District No.1 to Mt Olympus Improvement District to help distinguish it from Salt Lake City and 

other local government agencies. 

Today the District collects wastewater from a service area with boundaries on the north of 

approximately 2700 South from the Jordan River east to the mountains and south from the Jordan 

River at about 4100 South on a diagonal to Highland Drive and 6200 South and then east to the 

mountains. This service area encompasses a large portion of Millcreek City, parts of unincorporated 

Salt Lake County, approximately half of The City of South Salt Lake, a large portion of The City of 

Holladay, and a small portion of Murray City, thus serving a population of approximately 165,300 

residents and businesses. The District owns, operates, and maintains 8,340 manholes and 360.3 miles 

of sewer collection lines (not including private lines connected to District main lines), which convey 

and deliver wastewater for treatment to CVWRF located at 800 West Central Valley Road in the City 

of South Salt Lake. 

Financial Highlights 

► The total net position for the year ended 2024 was $80,429,946. Of this amount, $15,246,226 

(District Capital Assets) and the $45,319,128 Investment in CVWRF Joint Venture (therefore 

classified as an Unrestricted Asset) represent land, wastewater collection and treatment 

systems, buildings, vehicles, and equipment. The remaining $19,864,592 of Unrestricted Net 

Position consists of operating cash, investment reserves, and net current liabilities maintained 

for emergencies, major repairs and replacements, and capital projects. These reserves are 

also held in place of funding depreciation and may be used to meet the District’s obligations 

to citizens and creditors. 

► The District's total assets increased by $7,659,878, mainly due to an increase in the 

investment in CVWRF and increases in cash and investments held at year end. 

► The District's total liabilities increased by $695,708 during the current fiscal year. The 

increase is mainly due to the payable with CVWRF and the increase in the net pension 

liability of $131,213 for 2024. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The District operates and accounts for its activities as an enterprise fund which is similar to private 

business enterprises. 
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This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial 

statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 

statements. The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 

District's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The Statement of Net Position 

presents information on all of the District's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and 

deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or 

decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of the financial position of the District . The 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position shows how the District's net position 

changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  

Notes to the financial statements 

The notes provide additional information essential to a complete understanding of the data provided in 

the financial statements. 

Employer Pension Financial Disclosure 

In 2015 the Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) implemented Statement 68. This 

statement requires state and local governments to disclose their proportionate share of the Net Pension 

Liability and/or Net Pension Asset and the deferred inflows and outflows of resources relating to 

pensions and pension expenses. For 2024 and 2023, the district’s share of the Utah Retirement pension 

liability was $419,713 and $288,500, respectively. 

Financial Analysis 

As of December 31, 2024, District’s assets exceed liabilities by $80,429,946. The largest portion of the 

District's assets, 81%, reflects unrestricted net assets. The remaining portion of the District’s assets, 19%, 

reflects investment reserves for infrastructure and capital projects. The District’s investment in the 

CVWRF joint venture represents 70% of the unrestricted net position. 

2024 2023 2022

Current and other assets 68,565,020$   61,316,911$   54,526,027$   

Capital assets, net 15,246,226     14,834,457     14,329,535     

Total Assets 83,811,246     76,151,368     68,855,562     

Deferred outflows of resources 939,126          734,570          555,584          

Total Assets and Deferred

Outflows of Resources 84,750,372$   76,885,938$   69,411,146$   

Long-term liabilities 900,528$        709,334$        238,152$        

Current liabilities 3,413,631       2,909,117       2,641,493       

Total Liabilities 4,314,159       3,618,451       2,879,645       

Deferered inflows of resources 6,267             22,353           1,270,613       

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 15,246,226     14,834,457     14,329,535     

Unrestricted     65,183,720     58,410,677     50,931,353     

Total Net Position 80,429,946     73,245,134     65,260,888     

Total Liabilities, Deferred

Inflows & Net Position 84,750,372$   76,885,938$   69,411,146$   
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During the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, the District’s net position increased by $7,184,812 

and $7,984,246, respectively. The increases in 2024 and 2023 is due to increased capital investments in 

CVWRF, and increases in operating revenues each year.  

 

Key elements of the change in net position are as follows: 

► Sewer fees increased by $1,436,723 or 9% and $1,566,716 or 11% for the year ended December 

31, 2024, and 2023, respectively. The increase for the year ending December 31, 2024, is due to 

a fee increase from $23 to $25 per residential equivalent per month. The increase for the year 

ending December 31, 2023, is due to a fee increase from $21 to $23 per residential equivalent 

per month. 

► Property taxes increased by $13,505 or 0.41% and decreased by $58,795 or 1.82% during the 

years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively. The changes in tax revenues is primarily 

the result of growth within the District boundaries.

2024 2023 2022

Operating revenues

Sewer fees 17,272,144$   15,835,421$   14,268,705$   

Other 206,990          210,023          154,800          

Total operating revenue 17,479,134     16,045,444     14,423,505     

Operating expenses

Wages and employee benefits 3,936,734       3,687,540       3,299,149       

Operating expenses from CVWRF 6,106,910       5,850,206       5,411,827       

Pension adjustment (89,429)          (239,197)        (470,119)        

Depreciation 950,310          831,075          805,987          

Other 1,938,202       2,130,825       2,033,004       

Total operating expenses 12,842,727     12,260,449     11,079,848     

Operating income (loss) 4,636,407       3,784,995       3,343,657       

Nonoperating revenue (expense):

Property taxes 3,296,210       3,282,705       3,223,910       

Net Interest income & Gains 1,081,568       823,733          248,122          

Equity loss from CVWRF joint venture (2,561,197)      (859,342)        (1,115,430)      

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 1,816,581       3,247,096       2,356,602       

Income before capital contributions 6,452,988       7,032,091       5,700,259       

Capital contributions

Capacity fees 286,524          327,455          137,198          

Developer contributed sewer lines 445,300          624,700          174,390          

Total Capital contributions 731,824          952,155          311,588          

Change in net position 7,184,812       7,984,246       6,011,847       

Net position at beginning of year 73,245,134     65,260,888     59,249,041     

Total Net Position, End of Year 80,429,946$   73,245,134$   65,260,888$   
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► Net Interest income of $1,081,568 in 2024 was a large increase over the 2023 net interest and 

gains amount of $823,733 as a result of significant increases in interest rates that started in 2022 

and continued throughout 2024.  

► Capital contributions decreased by $220,331 for the year ended December 31, 2024. The decrease 

is attributable to the number of building projects finalized within the district in the past year 

compared to 2023. 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 

legal requirements. 

Service and Budgetary Highlights 

In 2024, the District collected approximately 5.19 billion gallons of wastewater, removing approximately 

4,326.6 dry tons of organic pollutants measured by the consumption of oxygen by bacteria (BOD) and another 

3,576.0 tons of suspended solids (TSS).  This represents a daily average of 14.21 million gallons per day of 

wastewater, 23,707.26 pounds per day of BOD, and 19,594.75 pounds per day of TSS.  This waste stream was 

generated by an average of 28,472 billing accounts using approximately 58,147 monthly units of service.  A 

service unit is based on the wastewater and domestic pollutant load discharged by an average residence each 

month. 

 

This service effort includes personnel for maintenance operations, engineering, and inspection for construction 

compliance, clerical, accounting, and administration.  This staff of 25 full-time employees is governed by a three-

member Board of Trustees.  Annual funding of operations is the result of adopting an annual budget after a 

public hearing.  The budget is maintained on a cash basis.  The following schedule summarizes the original 

budget and amended budget, the actual and the variance. 
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Differences between the budget and the actual for the year 2024 can be summarized as follows: 

➢ $590,588 favorable variance for total revenues, mainly due to an increase in capacity fees, interest 

income, and other fees. 

➢ $2,892,128 favorable variance for total expenses. The largest line-item deals with payments related to 

CVWRF – both operating costs, and capital additions. 

 

2024 Budget 2024 Budget

Original Amended Actual Variance

Revenues:

Opeating revenue 17,196,900$       17,196,900$       17,272,144$       75,244$          

Property taxes 3,240,237          3,261,048          3,296,210          35,162            

Interest income 750,000             850,000             1,009,168          159,168          

Capacity fees -                    -                    286,524             286,524          

Other fees 152,500             172,500             206,990             34,490            

Total revenues 21,339,637         21,480,448         22,071,036         590,588          

Expenses:

Sewer lines 3,238,651          3,304,763          2,986,958          317,805          

Information Technology 434,731             434,731             347,741             86,990            

CVWRF 6,986,532          6,986,532          6,106,910          879,622          

CVWRF additions 7,525,400          7,525,400          6,346,133          1,179,267        

Administration 2,003,290          1,928,292          1,808,487          119,805          

Interest & Pension Expense -                    -                    (89,429)              89,429            

Engineering and inspection 791,171             800,171             731,750             68,421            

Paying Agent 127,739             127,739             -                    127,739          

Capital additions (net non-cash) 896,079             939,829             916,779             23,050            

Total expenses 22,003,593         22,047,457         19,155,329         2,892,128        

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues

over Expenses (663,956)            (567,009)            2,915,707          3,482,716        

Use of (addition to) District reserves 663,956             567,009             (2,915,707)         (3,482,716)      

Excess of Revenues over

Expenses Including Reserves -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                

Mt. Olympus Improvement District

Budget vs. Actual

Year ended December 31, 2024



 

9 

 

Capital Assets 

The District's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2024, amounts to $15,246,226 (net of accumulated 

depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, sewer systems, vehicles, equipment, and deferred 

pension outflow. 

 

Reserve Funds 

The District held $20,730,469 in reserves at the end of the current fiscal year. Reserve funds are 

maintained to provide liquid assets for funding repairs and reconstruction of infrastructure in the event 

of catastrophic events, which potentially could affect the District's ability to  provide service to its 

customers and to meet new proposed EPA nutrient requirements. Since the District does not fund 

depreciation, the Board of Trustees has set a reserve amount that the District maintains.  

Fee Structure 

The monthly service fee is $25.00 per month per equivalent residential unit. The tax rate decreased by 

0.000011 from 0.000184 in 2023 to 0.000173 in 2024.
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Actual O & M Expenses vs Budget 2024

ACTUAL BUDGET

2024 2023 2022

Land 449,836$       449,836$       449,836$        

Sewer main 14,659,683    14,214,383    13,589,683    

Sewer systems 21,015,819    21,015,819    20,953,282    

Offic & garage 3,964,922      3,956,699      3,929,858       

Furniture & fixtures 149,105          132,851          132,851          

Vehicles & equipment 3,376,222      2,863,473      2,316,206       

Tools & equipment 467,003          308,723          308,723          

Constrluction in progress 126,547          66,230            -                  

Total 44,209,137    43,008,014    41,680,439    

Less accumulated Depreciation (28,962,911)   (28,173,557)   (27,350,904)   

Total Capital Assets - net 15,246,226$  14,834,457$  14,329,535$  
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Long Term Debt  

The Board of Trustees approved an agreement with CVWRF in June 2020 concerning a $65 million State 

Revolving Fund Loan by the Division of Water Quality.  CVWRF drew down $43 million of that loan in 2020, 

with the District’s share being $10,206,000 or 24.84%.  The remaining $22 million was used in 2022, with the 

District’s share being 23.78% or $5.2 million.   In 2021, the District also participated in the 2021 B Series Sewer 

Revenue Bonds at $5.4 million or 24.29% of the bond and a 2021 C Series Sewer Revenue Bond at $31.9 million 

or 25.59% of the bond.  In 2022, the District participated in the Bank of Utah Bond at $5.5 million, which was 

24.29% of that bond, and lastly in 2024 the District participated in the 2024A Series Bond at $23.7 million or 

27.64% of that bond.  All bonds were rated AA by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch.  Additional information can be 

found in the CVWRF audited Financial Statements on pages 27 - 29.  

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances. Questions 

concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 

information should be addressed to the Mt. Olympus Improvement District, Attention: Stephen 

Rohwer, Chief Financial Officer, 3932 South 500 East, Salt Lake City, UT  84107-1895.  
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MT. OLYMPUS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2024, and 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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2024 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Unrestricted Cash and cash equivalents 11,725,965$     9,371,495$       

Receivables:

Accounts receivable, net 490,210           504,254           

Property taxes 670,464           136,851           

Certified liens 173,369           119,523           

Prepaid insurnace -                  39,476             

Inventory - gas, oil, parts 37,262             27,338             

Total Current Assets 13,097,270       10,198,937       

Noncurrent Assets:

Investments 10,148,622       9,583,780         

Capital Assets  - not being depreciated 576,383           516,066           

Capital Assets - net of depreciation 14,669,843       14,318,391       

Investment in CVWRF Joint Venture 45,319,128       41,534,194       

Net pension asset -                  -                  

Total Non-current Assets 70,713,976       65,952,431       

Total Assets 83,811,246       76,151,368       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows relating to pensions 939,126           734,570           

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 939,126           734,570           

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 84,750,372$     76,885,938$     



MT. OLYMPUS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued) 

December 31, 2024, and 2023 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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2024 2023

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 131,219$          192,542$          

Accounts payable - CVWRF joint venture 2,158,382         1,546,346         

Accrued liabilities 32,483             158,645           

Deposits 35,300             32,800             

Unearned revenue 837,511           774,295           

Compensated absences - Current 218,736           204,489           

Total Current Liabilities 3,413,631         2,909,117         

Non-Current Liabilities:

Net pension liability 419,713           288,500           

Compensated absences - LT 480,815           420,834           

Total Non-Current Liabilities 900,528           709,334           

Total Liabilities 4,314,159         3,618,451         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows relating to pensions 6,267               22,353             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,267               22,353             

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,320,426         3,640,804         

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 15,246,226       14,834,457       

Restricted for:

Restricted for capital projects

Unrestricted 65,183,720       58,410,677       

Total Net Position 80,429,946       73,245,134       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 84,750,372$     76,885,938$     



MT. OLYMPUS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

For The Years Ended December 31, 2024, and 2023 
   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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2024 2023

Operating Revenues

Sewer sales 17,272,144$     15,835,421$     

Inspection fees 20,650             28,000             

Nose-on 8,750               12,000             

Penalties 141,440           134,629           

Miscellaneous operating revenue 36,150             35,394             

Total Operating Revenues 17,479,134       16,045,444       

Operating Expenses

Wages and salaries 2,569,513         2,430,408         

Employee benefits 1,367,221         1,257,132         

Sewer water processing - CVWRF 6,106,910         5,850,206         

General administrative 620,659           682,444           

Sewer line repairs and maintenance 888,407           1,007,797         

Truck and auto repairs and maintenance 200,727           180,385           

Building repairs and maintenance 53,647             54,722             

Utilities 87,887             62,908             

Professional services 86,875             142,569           

Pension adjustment (89,429)            (239,197)          

Depreciation 950,310           831,075           

Total Operating Expenses 12,842,727       12,260,449       

Operating Income (Loss) 4,636,407         3,784,995         

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

Interest income 1,009,168         823,733           

Property tax revenue 3,296,210         3,282,705         

Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 72,400             -                      

Equity loss from CVWRF joint venture (2,561,197)       (859,342)          

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 1,816,581         3,247,096         

Income before capital contributions 6,452,988         7,032,091         

Capital Contributions

Capacity fees 286,524           327,455           

Developer contributed sewer lines 445,300           624,700           

Total Capital Contributions 731,824           952,155           

Change In Net Position 7,184,812         7,984,246         

Net Position at Beginning of Year 73,245,134       65,260,888       

Net Position at End of Year 80,429,946$     73,245,134$     
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2024 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and users 17,505,048$     16,004,293$     

Payments to vendors (7,464,847)       (7,621,333)       

Payments to employees (3,988,668)       (3,629,095)       

Net Cash From Operating Activities 6,051,533         4,753,865         

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities

Property tax receipts 2,762,597         3,570,504         

Net Cash From Noncapital Financing Activities 2,762,597         3,570,504         

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities

Purchase of property and equipment (916,779)          (711,297)          

Cash received for capacity fees 286,524           327,455           

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 72,400             -                  

Net Cash From Capital and Related Financing Activities (557,855)          (383,842)          

Cash Flows From Investing Activity                             

Interest income 444,326           362,487           

Cash paid for investment in CVWRF joint venture (6,346,131)       (5,504,998)       

Net Cash From Investing Activity (5,901,805)       (5,142,511)       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,354,470         2,798,016         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 9,371,495 6,573,479

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 11,725,965$     9,371,495$       

Cash and Cash Equivalents as Stated on 

the Statement of Net Position

Unrestricted 11,725,965$     9,371,495$       

Restricted -                  -                  

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as Stated 

on the Statement of Net Position 11,725,965$     9,371,495$       
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2024 2023

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net

Cash From Operating Activities:

Income from Operations 4,636,407$       3,784,995$       

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

from operating activities:

Depreciation expense 950,310           831,075           

Pension expense (89,429)            (239,197)          

(Increase) Decrease in assets 

Accounts receivable, net 14,044             (63,554)            

Unremitted tax liens (53,846)            (40,164)            

Prepaid insurance 39,476             (4,438)              

Inventory (9,924)              34,842             

Increase (Decrease) in liabilities

Accounts payable 550,713           329,294           

Accrued liabilities (126,162)          18,252             

Deposits liability 2,500               (6,400)              

Unearned revenue 63,216             68,967             

Acculated leave liability 74,228             40,193             

   Net Cash From Operating Activities 6,051,533$       4,753,865$       

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities 2024 2023

Loss from investment in Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility 2,561,197$       859,342$          

Developer contributed sewer lines recorded at fair market value 445,300$          624,700$          
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 

Mt. Olympus Improvement District, formerly Salt Lake City Suburban Sanitary District #1, (the 

District) is an agency of the State of Utah organized during 1946 as a special district for the 

purpose of providing sewer services. The State of Utah has no oversight responsibility over the 

District. The District is not a component unit of another government as defined by Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, 

since the District is an improvement district governed by a Board of Trustees which are elected 

by the public and have decision making authority, the authority to levy taxes, the power to 

designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations and primary 

accountability for fiscal matters. In addition, there are no component units as defined in GASB 

Statement 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, which are 

included in the District’s reporting entity. Effective August 13, 2012, the board of directors 

passed a resolution to change the name of the District from Salt Lake City Suburban Sanitary 

District #1 to Mt. Olympus Improvement District. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America as applicable to government entities. The Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing accounting and 

financial reporting principles. Financial reporting is based upon accounting guidance codified by 

GASB. 

The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

 Financial Statement Presentation and Basis of Accounting 

The District prepares its financial statements on an enterprise fund basis, which is reported 

using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 

similar to private businesses, where the intent is that all costs of providing certain goods and 

services to the general public be financed or recovered primarily through user fees, or where 

it has been deemed that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for capital 

maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Revenues from operations, investments, and other sources are recorded when earned and 

expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred. Non-exchange transactions, in which the 

District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property tax 

revenue and contributed sewer lines. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 

delivering goods and services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing 

operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are fees to customers of the 

system. Operating expenses for the District include the costs of treatment, personnel, 

administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 

meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits 

and short-term investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of 

acquisition. All non-restricted amounts are considered to be cash and cash equivalents for 

cash flow statement purposes. 

The Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF) accounts of the District are stated at 

amortized cost, which approximates fair value in accordance with GASB No. 72, Fair Value 

Measurement and Application.  

Investments 

Investments are adjusted to fair value as prescribed in GASB No. 31, Account and Financial 

Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, when material 

differences exist. 

Restricted Assets 

The District maintains accounts which are restricted by state law for use in capital projects. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy 

to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

  Inventory 

The District’s inventories include various items consisting of replacement parts, and other 

maintenance related equipment and supplies used in the construction and repair of sewer 

systems. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out 

(FIFO) method. Inventory items are expensed as used. Obsolete inventory is written off in 

the period it is deemed worthless. 

  Capital Assets 

Capital Assets are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost and are defined by the 

District as assets with a cost of $5,000 or more. Normal maintenance and repair expenses 

that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

Material improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the 

related fixed assets. The net book value of property sold or otherwise disposed of is removed 

from the property and accumulated depreciation accounts and the resulting gain or loss is 

included as non-operating revenues or expenses. 

Material major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 

constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is reflected in 

the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds 

over the same period. No interest was capitalized during the current fiscal year. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Capital Assets (continued)  

Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method over the following 

estimated useful lives: 

     Sewer mains and system  50 years  

     Office Building, garage and improvements  5-40 years  

     Furniture and Fixtures 8 years 

     Vehicles and Trucks 5-10 years  

      Tools and Equipment 3-8 years 

Contributed Capital 

The District receives title to various sewer lines that have been constructed by developers 

after the District certifies that these lines meet all the required specifications. The District 

records sewer lines at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation, provided by the 

District’s engineers, which are then depreciated under the methods and lives set forth above. 

 Joint Venture 

The District accounts for its interest in a joint venture using the equity method of accounting. 

 Accumulated Leave 

District employees are entitled to certain accumulated leave based on their length of 

employment. Unused sick leave can be accumulated up to 2,080 hours and must be used by 

employees at retirement as follows: 1) sick leave must be cashed out at one fourth the 

accumulated value, and 2) the remaining accumulated value must be used to pay for health 

care premiums from retirement date until fully expended, the balance is also available for a 

Medicare supplement until fully expended. Employees that are terminated before retirement 

forfeit any sick leave benefits. Unused vacation leave may accumulate up to the current year 

allocation plus 120 hours. 

 Property Tax Revenues 

Property tax rates are approved in June of each year by the Board of Trustees for the District. 

County Assessors assess a value (an approximation of market value) as of January 1 of each 

year for all real property, to which the property tax rates will apply for assessing property 

taxes. The property taxes assessed become delinquent after November 30. The District’s 

certified tax rate in Salt Lake County for 2024 and 2023 was .000173 and .000184 

respectively. The District appropriates the entire amount to operations and maintenance. The 

statutory maximum set by the State for operations and maintenance is .000800. There is no 

maximum for reduction of general obligation bonds. 

Budgetary Accounting 

The District adopts an annual budget, which is maintained on a cash basis. All annual 

appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.  

Income Taxes 

The District is exempt from all federal and state income taxes as a political division created 

by Utah State Law. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The District has determined that their accounts receivable are fully collectible because 

uncollected fees are certified to the county and are attached as liens on the related real estate 

where allowable. Therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been established. 

  Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 

from those estimates. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 

the fiduciary net position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) including 

additions to and deductions from URS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the 

same basis as they are reported by URS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 

refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 

the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for 

deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows 

of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and 

will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In 

addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for 

deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 

resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will 

not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

  Comparative Data and Reclassifications 

Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in certain sections of the 

accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the 

District’s financial position and operations. 

NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the State 

Treasurer about investment policies, promote measure and rules that will assist in strengthening 

the banking and credit structure of the State, and review the rules adopted under the authority of 

the State of Utah Money Management Act that relate to the deposit and investment of public 

funds.
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

The District follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act (Act) (Utah Code 

Annotated 1953, Section 51, Chapter 7) in handling its depository and investment transactions. 

This law requires the depositing of District funds in a "qualified depository". The Act defines a 

"qualified depository" as any financial institution whose deposits are insured by an agency of the 

Federal government, and which has been certified by the state commissioner of financial 

institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money 

Management Council. 

The Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments for the District’s 

funds and the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions may be 

conducted only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, certified investment advisors, or 

directly with issuers of the investment securities.  

Statutes authorize the District to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified 

depositories; negotiable certificates of deposits must be equal to, or less than, 97% of the FDIC 

limit. The purchase price of the negotiable deposit must be equal to or less than par; repurchase 

and reverse repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is classified as “first-tier” by two 

nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the 

United States Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage 

derivative products, issued by U.S. government-sponsored enterprises such as the Federal Home 

Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and Federal National Mortgage 

Association; bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the 

State; fixed-rate corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or higher, or the 

equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; shares 

or certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Money Management Act; and the 

Utah State Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund.  

The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF). The 

PTIF is available for investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer and is not 

registered with the SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the 

Act. The Act established the Money Management Council, which oversees the activities of the 

State Treasurer and the PTIF and details the types of authorized investments. Deposits in the 

PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and participants share 

proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments. 

The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and 

losses of the PTIF, net of administration fees, are allocated based upon the participant’s average 

daily balance. The fair value of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of 

the pool shares. 

The balance sheet captions, which related to cash and cash equivalents and investments, are 

summarized as follows: 

2024 2023

Cash 11,725,965$       9,371,495$         

Noncurrent investments 10,148,622         9,583,780           

21,874,587$       18,955,275$       
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following amounts: 

 

Custodial credit risk – deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits 

may not be returned to it. The District does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit 

risk. As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the carrying amount of the District’s cash was $302,462 

and $489,722 respectively, and the bank balance was $285,785 and $524,253 respectively. Of 

the bank balance, $250,000 was covered for both 2024 and 2023, by Federal depository insurance 

and the remaining balances were held in an account invested in short-term U.S. Government 

Securities and, therefore, was uninsured and uncollateralized. 

Investments:  

The Money Management Act also governs the scope of securities allowed as appropriate 

investments for the District and conditions for making investment transactions. Investment 

transactions are to be conducted through qualified depositories or primary reporting dealers. 

The District’s investments are exposed to certain risks as outlined below: 

Custodial credit risk – investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the 

District will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an 

outside party. The District does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk beyond the 

provisions of the Act. As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the District’s investments in the State 

of Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund were unrated. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 

of an investment. The District’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from 

increasing interest rates is to comply with the Act. Title 51-7-11 of the Act requires that the 

remaining term to maturity of investments may not exceed the period of availability of the funds 

to be invested. The Act further limits the remaining term to maturity on all investments in 

obligations of the United States Treasury, obligations issued by U.S. government-sponsored 

enterprises, and bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the 

State to five years. Also, variable rate negotiable deposits and variable rate securities may not 

have a remaining term to final maturity exceeding three years. As of December 31, 2024, and 

2023 the fair value of the District’s investment in the PTIF is $11,920,057 and $10,952,099, with 

a carrying value of $11,897,883 and $10,968,766 respectively. 

2024 2023

Cash on hand 450$                  450$               

Cash on deposit 302,462            489,722         

Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Fund 11,423,053       8,881,323      

Total Cash and equivalents 11,725,965$    9,371,495$    
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

As of December 31, 2024, the District’s investments had the following maturities: 

 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 

obligations. The District’s policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with the 

Act as previously discussed. The Act requires investment transactions to be conducted only 

through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment 

securities. Permitted investments include deposits of qualified depositories, repurchase 

agreements, commercial paper that is classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized 

statistical rating organizations, one of which must be Moody’s Investor Services or Standard & 

Poors, bankers’ acceptances, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. As of December 31, 2024, 

and 2023, the District’s investments in the State of Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund 

were unrated. 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s 

investment in a single issuer. The District’s policy for reducing the risk of loss is to comply with 

the Rules of the Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money Management Council limits 

investments in a single issuer of commercial paper and corporate obligations to 5%-10% 

depending upon total dollar amount held in the portfolio. The District does not have any corporate 

obligations from a single issuer that are over 10% of the portfolio. 

The District invests in the PTIF, which is a voluntary external Local Governmental Investment 

Pool managed by the Utah State Treasurer’s Office and is audited by the Utah State Auditor. No 

separate report as an external investment pool has been issued for the PTIF. The PTIF is not 

registered with the SEC as an investment company, and is not rated. The PTIF is authorized and 

regulated by the Utah Money Management Act, (Utah Code Title 51, Chapter 7). The PTIF 

invests in high-grade securities which are delivered to the custody of the Utah State Treasurer, 

assuring a perfected interest in the securities, and therefore, there is very little credit risk except 

in the most unusual and unforeseen circumstances. Weighted average maturity of the PTIF at 

December 31, 2024 was 38 days.  

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 More than 5

Corporate Bonds 5,362,749$     399,701$        4,963,048$     -$               

Marketable CD 236,447         -                 236,447          -                 

U.S. Obligation Bond 3,825,262      498,088          3,327,174       -                 

Utah Public Treasurer's 

Investment Fund 475,715         475,715          -                 -                 

Total 10,149,507$   1,373,504$     8,776,003$     -$               

Investment Maturities (in Years)
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and 

participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments. The PTIF 

operates and reports to participants on an amortized costs basis. The income, gains, losses, net of 

administration fees, of the PTIF are allocated to participants on the ratio of the participants’ share 

to the total funds in the PTIF based on the participants’ average daily balance. The PTIF allocates 

income and issues statements on a monthly basis. Twice a year, at June 30 and December 31, 

which are the accounting periods for public entities, the investments are valued at fair value and 

participants are informed of the fair value valuation factor. Additional information is available 

from the Utah State Treasurer’s Office.  

At December 31,2024, the District had the following quality ratings: 

 

Fair Value of Investments 

The District measures its investments using fair value measurement guidelines established by 

generally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value 

hierarchy, as follows: 

• Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the District can access. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and 

regularly available in an active market, the valuation of these securities does not entail any 

significant degree of judgment. Securities classified as Level 1 inputs include U.S. 

Government securities and certain other U.S. Agency and sovereign government obligations; 

• Level 2: Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all 

significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Securities classified as Level 2 

include corporate and municipal bonds, and “brokered” or securitized certificates of deposit; 

and, 

• Level 3: Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair 

value measurement. 

 

Average Rating Corporate CD Agency International PTIF Total

AA+ 651,673$      -$             3,825,262$   -$             -$             4,476,935$   

AA- 400,902        -               -               -               -               400,902        

A+ 1,457,353     -               -               -               -               1,457,353     

A 450,516        -               -               -               -               450,516        

A- 1,752,302     -               -               249,334        -               2,001,636     

BBB+ 650,003        -               -               -               -               650,003        

Unrated -               236,447        -               -               475,715        712,162        

5,362,749$   236,447$      3,825,262$   249,334$      475,715$      10,149,507$ 
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NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

On December 31, 2024 the District had the following recurring fair value measurements: 

 

NOTE 3 UNREMITTED PROPERTY LIENS 

Unremitted property liens as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, in the amount of $173,369 and 

$119,523, respectively, represent the total amount of past due accounts receivable which have 

been referred to the Salt Lake County Treasurer’s office for attachment to the related real estate 

property as liens. In 2004 the Utah State Legislature passed HB56 which prohibits the District 

from collecting from the current owner a previous owner’s arrearage for sewer service provided 

to the property before the current owner’s ownership, absent a valid lien. 

NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS 

The summary of the District’s capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 

2023 follows: 

 

Fair Value Measurements Using

12/31/2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by fair value level

Utah State Treasurer's investment pool 475,715$        -$                475,715$       -$                

Corporate Bonds 5,362,749       5,362,749       -                  -                  

Marketable CD 236,447          236,447          -                  -                  

U.S. Obligation Bond 3,825,262       3,825,262       -$                -                  

International Bonds 249,334          249,334          -                  -                  

Total investments by fair value level 10,149,507$  9,673,792$    475,715$       -$                     

Balance 

12/31/2023

Additions / 

Transfers In

Deletions / 

Transfers Out

Balance 

12/31/2024

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 449,836$         -$               -$               449,836$          

Construction in progress 66,230              60,317           -                  126,547            

Total Capital Assets not 

being depreciated 516,066           60,317           -                  576,383            

Capital assets, being depreciated

Sewer main 14,214,383      445,300         -                  14,659,683      

Sewer systems 21,015,819      -                  -                  21,015,819      

Office & garage 3,956,699        8,223              -                  3,964,922         

Furniture and fixtures 132,851           16,254           -                  149,105            

Vehicles & trucks 2,863,473 673,705         (160,956)        3,376,222         

Tools & equipment 308,723 158,280         -                  467,003            

Total Capital Assets,

being depreciated 42,491,948      1,301,762      (160,956)        43,632,754      

Less accumulated depreciation

Sewer main (6,352,293)       (252,082)        -                  (6,604,375)       

Sewer systems (17,665,579)    (212,506)        -                  (17,878,085)     

Office & garage (2,160,230)       (118,836)        -                  (2,279,066)       

Furniture and fixtures (94,535)            (7,005)            -                  (101,540)          

Vehicles & trucks (1,598,206)       (334,073)        160,956         (1,771,323)       

Tools & equipment (302,714)          (25,808)          -                  (328,522)          

Total accumulated depreciation (28,173,557) (950,310)        160,956         (28,962,911)

Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 14,318,391 351,452         -                  14,669,843

Total capital assets, net 14,834,457$    411,769$       -$                    15,246,226$    
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NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

 

Depreciation expense of $950,310 and $831,075 was charged to expense for the years ended 

December 31, 2024, and 2023 respectively. 

NOTE 5 LONG -TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of the changes in the compensated absences payable for the year 

ended December 31, 2024: 

 

NOTE 6 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 

Property tax revenues are derived from four major sources: 1) general property assessments on 

real estate and improvements to real estate, 2) personal property assessments on mobile homes, 

business equipment, etc., 3) age-based assessments on motor vehicles, and 4) delinquent tax 

collections, interest, and fees. 

Balance 

12/31/2022

Additions / 

Transfers In

Deletions / 

Transfers Out

Balance 

12/31/2023

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 449,836$         -$               -$               449,836$          

Construction in progress -                    66,230           -                  66,230              

Total Capital Assets not 

being depreciated 449,836           66,230           -                  516,066            

Capital assets, being depreciated

Sewer main 13,589,683      624,700         -                  14,214,383      

Sewer systems 20,953,282      62,537           -                  21,015,819      

Office & garage 3,929,858        26,841           -                  3,956,699         

Furniture and fixtures 132,851           -                  -                  132,851            

Vehicles & trucks 2,316,206 555,689         (8,422)            2,863,473         

Tools & equipment 308,723 -                  -                  308,723            

Total Capital Assets,

being depreciated 41,230,603      1,269,767      (8,422)            42,491,948      

Less accumulated depreciation

Sewer main (6,109,558)       (242,735)        -                  (6,352,293)       

Sewer systems (17,451,615)    (213,964)        -                  (17,665,579)     

Office & garage (2,043,024)       (117,206)        -                  (2,160,230)       

Furniture and fixtures (88,532)            (6,003)            -                  (94,535)             

Vehicles & trucks (1,366,902)       (239,726)        8,422              (1,598,206)       

Tools & equipment (291,273)          (11,441)          -                  (302,714)          

Total accumulated depreciation (27,350,904) (831,075)        8,422              (28,173,557)

Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 13,879,699 438,692         -                  14,318,391

Total capital assets, net 14,329,535$    504,922$       -$                    14,834,457$    

December 31, December 31, Due Within

2023 Additions Retirements 2024 One Year

Compensated absenses 625,323$        74,228$         * -$              699,551$       218,736$       

Total 625,323$        74,228$         -$              699,551$       218,736$       

* amount represents a net increase during the year.
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NOTE 6 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE (Continued) 

The District’s tax rate is .000173 and .000184 for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023 

respectfully. Property tax revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was as 

follows: 

 

NOTE 7 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS 

Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan 

Plan description: Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah 

Retirement Systems. Utah Retirement Systems are comprised of the following Pension Trust 

Funds: 

• Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); is a 

multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system. 

• Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees 

System); is a multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system. 

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees 

beginning on or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah 

Retirement Systems, are members of the Tier 2 Retirement System. 

The Utah Retirement Systems (Systems) are established and governed by the respective sections 

of Title 49 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The Systems' defined benefit plans 

are amended statutorily by the State Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 

49 provides for the administration of the Systems under the direction of the Utah State Retirement 

Board, whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds defined 

as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the State of 

Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms. 

URS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing Utah Retirement 

Systems, 560 E 200 S, Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website: 

www.urs.org/general/publications. 

Benefits provided: URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  

2024 2023

Total property taxes for the year 3,296,210$ 3,282,705$ 

Property tax receivable at December 31 670,464$    136,851$    

http://www.urs.org/
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NOTE 7 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Retirement benefits are as follows: 

 

Contributions Rate Summary 

As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to 

contribute certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the 

Utah State Retirement Board. Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when 

combined with employee contributions (where applicable), is expected to finance the costs of 

benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 

actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates as of December 31, 2024 are as follows: 

 

For fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the employer and employee contributions to the 

Systems were as follows: 

System Final Average 

Years of Service 

required and/or age 

eligible for benefit

Benefit percent per 

year of service COLA**

Noncontributory System Highest 3 years 30 years any age 2.0% per year Up to 4%

25 years any age *  all years

20 years age 60 * 

10 years age 62 * 

  4 years age 65

Tier 2 Public Employees System Highest 5 years 35 years any age 1.5% per year Up to 2.5%

20 years age 60* all years

10 years age 62 * 

  4 years age 65

* Actuarial reductions are applied.

** All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit except for judges, which 

is a compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the 

year, although unused CPI increases not met may be carried forward to subsequent years.

Employer

Utah Retirement Systems Employee Employer 401(k)

Contributory System 

111 -  Local Governmental Division Tier 2 0.70% 15.19% 0.00%

Noncontributory System

15-   Local Governmental Division Tier 1 N/A 16.97% N/A

Tier 2 DC Only

211 - Local Governmental N/A 5.19% 10.00%

System

Employer 

Contributions

Employee 

Contributions

Noncontributory System 239,222$               N/A

Tier 2 Public Employees System 147,682                 -                        

Tier 2 DC Only System 5,551                    N/A

Total Contributions 392,455$               -$                      
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NOTE 7 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by System. 

Contributions in the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 

Systems. 

Combined Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions 

At December 31, 2024, we reported a net pension asset of $0 and a net pension liability of 

$419,713. 

 

The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the total pension 

liability used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial 

valuation as of January 1, 2023, and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial 

procedures. The proportion of the net pension asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the 

employer's actual contributions to the Systems during the plan year over the total of all employer 

contributions to the System during the plan year. 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, we recognized pension expense of $303,466.  

At December 31, 2024, we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

The $392,456 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from 

contributions made by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of 

December 31, 2023.

Net Net 

Pension Pension Proportionate Proportionate Share Change

Asset Liability Share December 31, 2022 (Decrease)

Noncontributory System -$               366,768$        0.1581195% 0.1512294% 0.0068901%

Tier 2 Public Employees System -                 52,945           0.0272016% 0.0270756% 0.0001260%

Total Net Pension Asset / Liability -$               419,713$        

(Measurement Date): December 31, 2023

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual

   experience 273,773$               867$                     

Changes in assumptions 140,364                 42                         

Net difference between projected and actual

   earnings on pension plan investments 125,249                 -                        

Changes in proportion and differences between

   contributions and proportionate share of

   contributions 7,284                    5,358                    

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 392,456                 -                        

Total 939,126$               6,267$                   
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NOTE 7 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming 

fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

Noncontributory System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, we recognized pension expense of $234,265.  

At December 31, 2024, we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

The $239,222 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from 

contributions made by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of 

December 31, 2023.

Year Ended December 31, 

Deferred Outflows 

(Inflows) of 

Resources

2024 162,391$               

2025 157,823                 

2026 236,480                 

2027 (46,078)                 

2028 5,423                    

Thereafter 24,364                   

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual

   experience 256,815$               -$                      

Changes in assumptions 110,059                 -                        

Net difference between projected and actual

   earnings on pension plan investments 119,270                 -                        

Changes in proportion and differences between

   contributions and proportionate share of

   contributions -                        3,991                    

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 239,222                 -                        

Total 725,366$               3,991$                   
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NOTE 7 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming 

fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

Tier 2 Public Employees System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of 

Resources 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, we recognized pension expense of $69,201.  

At December 31, 2024, we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

The $153,234 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from 

contributions made by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of 

December 31, 2023.

Year Ended December 31, 

Deferred Outflows 

(Inflows) of 

Resources

2024 157,344$               

2025 150,668                 

2026 224,235                 

2027 (50,094)                 

2028 -                        

Thereafter -                        

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual

   experience 16,958$                 867$                     

Changes in assumptions 30,305                   42                         

Net difference between projected and actual

   earnings on pension plan investments 5,979                    -                        

Changes in proportion and differences between

   contributions and proportionate share of

   contributions 7,284                    1,367                    

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 153,234                 -                        

Total 213,760$               2,276$                   
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NOTE 7 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming 

fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31, 2023, actuarial valuation 

was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 

measurement: 

  Inflation   2.50 Percent 

  Salary increases  3.5 – 9.5 percent, average, including inflation 

  Investment rate of return 6.85 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, 

       including inflation 

Mortality rates were adopted from an actuarial experience study dated January 1, 2023. The 

retired mortality tables are developed using URS retiree experience and are based upon gender, 

occupation, and age as appropriate with projected improvement using the ultimate rates from the 

MP-2020 improvement scale using a base year of 2020. The mortality assumption for active 

members is the PUB-2010 Employees Mortality Table for public employees, teachers, and public 

safety members, respectively. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2023, valuation were based on the results of an 

actuarial experience study for the period ending December 31, 2022. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 

building-block method, in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 

(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 

major asset class and is applied consistently to each defined benefit pension plan. These ranges 

are combined to produce the longterm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 

real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 

target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 

summarized in the following table:

Year Ended December 31, 

Deferred Outflows 

(Inflows) of 

Resources

2024 5,047$                   

2025 7,155                    

2026 12,245                   

2027 4,016                    

2028 5,423                    

Thereafter 24,364                   
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NOTE 7 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

 

The 6.85% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50%, and a 

real return of 4.35% that is net of investment expense. 

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.85 percent. The 

projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions 

will be made at the current contribution rate, and that contributions from all participating 

employers will be made at contractually required rates that are actuarially determined and 

certified by the URS Board. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position 

was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current, active, and 

inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 

was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments, to determine the total pension liability. 

The discount rate does not use the Municipal 

Bond Index Rate. 

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the 

discount rate: The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability 

calculated using the discount rate of 6.85 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the 

net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 

percentage point lower (5.85 percent) or 1.00 percentage point higher (7.85 percent) than the 

current rate: 

 

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 

position is available in the separately issued URS financial report. 

Real Return Long-Term Expected

Target Asset Arithmetic Portfolio Real

Asset Class Allocation Basis Rate of Return

Equity securities 35.00% 6.87% 2.40%

Debt securities 20.00% 1.54% 0.31%

Real assets 18.00% 5.43% 0.98%

Private equity 12.00% 9.80% 1.18%

Absolute return 15.00% 3.86% 0.58%

Cash and cash equivalents 0.00% 0.24% 0.00%

Totals 100.00% 5.45%

Inflation 2.50%

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 7.95%

Expected Return Arithmetic Basis

System

1% Decrease or 

5.85%

Discount Rate of 

6.85%

1% Increase or

7.85%

Noncontributory System 1,903,508$            366,768$               (920,147)$              

Tier 2 Public Employee Sestem 181,910                 52,945                   (47,068)                 

Total 2,085,418$            419,713$               (967,215)$              
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NOTE 7 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 

Defined Contribution Savings Plans 

The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board 

and are generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems, 

but may also be used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged 

retirement savings programs authorized under sections 401(k), 457(b) and 408 of the Internal 

Revenue code. Detailed information regarding plan provisions is available in the separately 

issued URS financial report. 

The District participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans with Utah 

Retirement Systems: 

• 401(k) Plan 

• Roth IRA Plan 

Employee and employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings 

Plans for fiscal year ended December 31, were as follows: 

 

NOTE 8 CENTRAL VALLEY WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 

During 1978, the District entered into a joint venture with four other local districts and two cities. 

The joint venture, named Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility (CVWRF) was organized 

to construct and operate a regional sewage treatment facility for the benefit of the seven members. 

The seven members and their related ownership interest, as of December 31, 2024, and 2023, are 

as follows: 

2024 2023 2022

401(k) Plan

Employer Contributions 139,559$               86,837$                 81,082$                 

Employee Contributions 69,416                   76,630                   70,232                   

Roth IRA Plan

Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A

Employee Contributions 41,762$                 33,464$                 21,560$                 

2024 2023

Proportionate Proportionate

Share Share

Cottonwood Improvement District 15.86% 16.14%

Mt. Olympus Improvement District 24.58% 24.29%

Granger-Hunter Improvement District 24.96% 24.58%

Kearns Improvement District 11.06% 11.02%

Murray City 7.72% 7.91%

South Salt Lake City 4.98% 5.08%

Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District 10.84% 10.98%

Net Position 100.00% 100.00%
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NOTE 8 CENTRAL VALLEY WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY (Continued) 

The Joint venture is administered by a joint administration board. Each member entity appoints 

one member to the board, and voting power is not related to ownership. Therefore, each member 

is equal to another for voting privileges. The joint venture is responsible for adopting a budget 

and financing its operations, subject to approval by each of the seven members. Each member is 

billed its share of operations and capital costs based on the members usage and ownership 

percentage. 

The District accounts for its investment in CVWRF using the equity method of accounting. The 

following is a summary of CVWRF’s financial information as of December 31, 2024, and 2023 

and for the years then ended.  

 

These amounts were obtained from audited financial statements provided by CVWRF and may 

be obtained from the Office of the State Auditor’s website at https://auditor.utah.gov, or directly 

from CVWRF. 

All expenses (except depreciation) incurred by CVWRF are billed to its members. Accordingly, 

the District’s equity in net losses of CVWRF annually is billed to the District. The District’s 

equity in net losses of CVWRF annually approximates its share of CVWRF’s depreciation 

expense. Audited statements are available at Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility, 800 

West Central Valley Road, Salt Lake City, Utah 84119. 

2024 2023

Current assets 13,313,886$        16,094,574$    

Noncurrent assets 593,862,486        498,353,472    

Total assets 607,176,372$     514,448,046$  

Current liabilities 36,232,775$        32,060,814$    

Noncurrent liabilities 386,569,602        311,394,254    

Net position 184,373,995        170,992,978    

Total liabilities and net position 607,176,372$     514,448,046$  

Operating revenues 25,749,066$        24,718,077$    

Operating expenses 35,048,152          33,651,201      

Net operating loss (9,299,086)           (8,933,124)       

Member contributions 30,864,486          27,818,713      

Other (8,184,383)           (1,723,051)       

Change in net position 13,381,017$        17,162,538$    
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NOTE 8 CENTRAL VALLEY WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY (Continued) 

The District incurred the following costs from the joint venture for the years ended December 

31, 2024, and 2023: 

 

The District’s investment in CVWRF for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023 is 

$45,319,128 and $41,534,193, respectively. Change in the investment is summarized as follows: 

 

NOTE 9  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

At times the District has been involved in unasserted claims or assessments in the ordinary course 

of operations. Any potential gain or loss contingencies resulting from such matters are not 

considered to be material. 

NOTE 10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 

assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District has commercial 

insurance. The District also carries commercial workers’ compensation insurance. There were no 

significant reductions in coverage from the prior year, and settlement claims resulting from these 

risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years. 

NOTE 11 IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW STANDARD 

For 2024, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. GASB Statement No. 101 updates the recognition 

and measurement guidance for compensated absences. This Statement creates a unified model 

for reporting, as well as amends certain previously required disclosures. As a result of 

implementing this standard, the District recalculated its compensated absences balance for 2023 

and determined no significant change to the previously calculated compensated absences 

balances. Therefore, no restatement or change to previously reported balances was necessary. 

 

 

2024 2023

Treatment costs 5,651,856$       5,398,086$      

Pretreatment costs 132,043            191,452           

Laboratory 311,470            260,668           

Total 6,106,910$       5,850,206$      

Investment at January 1, 2024 41,534,194$     

Capital contributions 6,346,131         

Loss from CVWRF (2,561,197)       

Investment at December 31, 2024 45,319,128$     



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 



MT. OLYMPUS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

Measurement Date of December 31, 2023 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

36 

 

 

 

 

Proportionate

share of the net

pension liability

(asset) as a Plan fiduciary

Proportionate percentage of its net position as a

Proportion of the share of the net covered- percentage of the

net pension pension Covered employee total pension

For the year ended December 31, liability (asset) liability (asset) payroll payroll liability (asset)

Noncontributory System

2023 0.1581195% 366,768$          1,547,845$       23.70% 96.9%

2022 0.1512294% 259,018            1,394,084         18.58% 97.5%

2021 0.1549879% (887,632)           1,363,111         -65.12% 108.7%

2020 0.1674057% 85,870              1,476,847         5.81% 99.2%

2019 0.1710038% 644,491            1,495,396         43.10% 93.7%

2018 0.1712743% 1,261,216         1,471,766         85.69% 87.0%

2017 0.1693994% 742,190            1,455,661         50.99% 91.9%

2016 0.1653156% 1,061,528         1,421,416         74.68% 87.3%

2015 0.1653156% 1,061,528         1,421,416         74.68% 87.3%

2014 0.1823294% 1,031,708         1,541,818         66.92% 87.8%

Tier 2 Public Employees Systtem

2023 0.0272016% 52,945$            703,258$          7.53% 89.6%

2022 0.0270756% 29,482              591,947            4.98% 92.3%

2021 0.0281555% (11,916)             522,200            -2.28% 103.8%

2020 0.0278394% 4,004                 445,153            0.90% 98.3%

2019 0.0291080% 6,547                 404,567            1.62% 96.5%

2018 0.0299666% 12,834              349,453            3.67% 90.8%

2017 0.0261918% 2,309                 256,297            0.90% 97.4%

2016 0.0280698% 3,131                 230,192            1.36% 95.1%

2015 0.0280698% 3,131                 230,192            1.36% 95.1%

2014 0.0257577% (56)                     166,466            -0.03% 100.2%
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Contributions Contributions as 

Related to the a percentage of

Actuarial contractually Contribution covered 

Determined required deficiency employee 

As of fiscal year ended December 31, Contributions contribution (excess) Covered payroll payroll

Noncontributory System

2024 239,222$          239,222$          -$                  1,365,255$       17.52%

2023 278,148            278,148            -                     1,547,845         17.97%

2022 254,200            254,200            -                     1,394,084         18.23%

2021 251,767            251,767            -                     1,363,111         18.47%

2020 272,773            272,773            -                     1,476,847         18.47%

2019 276,199            276,199            -                     1,495,396         18.47%

2018 271,835            271,835            -                     1,471,766         18.47%

2017 268,861            268,861            -                     1,455,661         18.47%

2016 262,536            262,536            -                     1,421,416         18.47%

2015 284,774            284,774            -                     1,541,818         18.47%

Tier 2 Public Employees System*

2024 147,682$          147,682$          -$                  945,909$          15.61%

2023 111,746            111,746            -                     697,978            16.01%

2022 95,255              95,255              -                     593,721            16.04%

2021 83,287              83,287              -                     522,200            15.95%

2020 70,002              70,002              -                     445,153            15.73%

2019 63,102              63,102              -                     404,567            15.60%

2018 53,630              53,630              -                     349,453            15.35%

2017 38,472              38,472              -                     256,297            15.01%

2016 34,322              34,322              -                     230,192            14.91%

2015 24,839              24,839              -                     166,466            14.92%

Tier 2 Public Employees DC Only System*

2024 5,551$              5,551$              -$                  96,902$            5.73%

2023 6,402                 6,402                 -                     103,430            6.19%

2022 6,465                 6,465                 -                     100,607            6.43%

2021 5,389                 5,389                 -                     80,556              6.69%

2020 5,252                 5,252                 -                     78,505              6.69%

2019 5,218                 5,218                 -                     78,002              6.69%

2018 4,911                 4,911                 -                     73,405              6.69%

2017 4,654                 4,654                 -                     69,573              6.69%

2016 4,517                 4,517                 -                     67,517              6.69%

2015 4,251                 4,251                 -                     63,396              6.71%

*  Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 Systems. Tier 2 systems were 

created effective July 1, 2011.
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Changes in assumptions: 

Changes include updates to the mortality improvement assumption, salary increase assumption, disability 

incidence assumption, assumed retirement rates, and assumed termination rates, as recommended with the 

January 1, 2023 actuarial experience study. 
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To the Board of Trustees 

Mt. Olympus Improvement District  

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 

General of the United States, the financial statements of Mt. Olympus Improvement District (the District) as of and for 

the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 

comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 14, 2025. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over 

financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 

purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 

in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 

basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 

reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 

and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 

control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 

governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 

not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. 

Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 

material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material 

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 

amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 

accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 

of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This 

report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 

entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

K&C, CPAs 
K&C, Certified Public Accountants 

Woods Cross, Utah 

April 14, 2025 
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To the Board of Trustees  

Mt. Olympus Improvement District 

Report On Compliance  

We have audited Mt. Olympus Improvement District’s (District) compliance with the applicable state 

compliance requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the State 

Auditor for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

State compliance requirements were tested for the year ended December 31, 2024 in the following areas: 

Budgetary Compliance 

Fund Balance 

Fraud Risk Assessment 

Governmental Fees 

Utah Retirement Systems 

Public Treasurer’s Bond 

Opinion on Compliance 

In our opinion, Mt. Olympus Improvement District complied, in all material respects, with the state 

compliance requirements referred to above for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 

Standards); and the State Compliance Audit Guide (Guide). Our responsibilities under those standards and 

the State Compliance Audit Guide are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 

Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 

accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a 

legal determination of the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 

laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to District’s 

government programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 

compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 

on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 

absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, 

Government Auditing Standards, and the Guide will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. 
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The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material 

if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment 

made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's compliance with the requirements 

of the government program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Guide, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 

test basis, evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred 

to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 

internal control over compliance in accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide but not for 

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over 

compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 

control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report On Internal Control over Compliance 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 

in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 

control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 

internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, as 

defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 

compliance may exist that were not identified. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 

functions, to prevent or to detect and correct noncompliance with a state compliance requirement on a 

timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 

noncompliance with a state compliance requirement will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 

timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination 

of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a state compliance requirement that is less severe 

than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 

those charged with governance. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 

over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 

of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Guide. 

Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

K&C, CPAs 
K&C, Certified Public Accountants 

Woods Cross, Utah 

April 14, 2025 
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MT. OLYMPUS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2025 

ADMINISTRATION BUILDING BOARD ROOM 

2:00 P.M. 

 

 

SUMMARY 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

2. Minutes of Board Meeting – March 18, 2025 

3. Financial Information 

A. Review Mt. Olympus Payables and Disbursements 

B. Review Central Valley Invoice 

C. Review Financial Report 

4. Waterworth Resources Presentation – Possible Approval of Contract 

5. Central Valley Report – Keith Lord 

A. Entity Managers Meeting Report 

6. Discussion and Possible Approval of Resolution 2025-0415-01 – 2025 SSMP 
7. Discussion and Possible Approval of the Amended MTOID Administration Policy 

Manual 
8. Discussion and Possible Approval of Revisions to the MTOID Employment Policy 

Manual 

9. Update on Election 

A. Approval of Resolution 2025-0415-02 the Interlocal Agreement with Salt Lake 
County to Conduct the District’s 2025 Trustee Election 

10. Manager’s Report 

A. Personnel Review 

B. Operations Report 

i. Update on Trunkline A Project 

ii. Update on Jetter Truck Purchase 

C. UGFOA Conference Report 

11. Information Items (No Action Required) 

A. District Activity Reports 

B. Central Valley Flow & Load Report 

C. Utah Public Treasurer’s Pool Yield 
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PRESENT: 

Ami Neff, Board Chair 

Keith Lord, Trustee 

Michele Rivera, Trustee 

Giles E. Demke, General Manager 

Stephen Rohwer, Assistant General Manager/CFO 

Trevor Eppich, Controller 

Dean Ayala, District Engineer 

Zack Stevens, Lines Superintendent 

Tammy Gonzales, Executive Secretary/District Clerk 

GUESTS: 

Rachel Anderson, Fabian VanCott – District Counsel 

Grange Gordon, Waterworth (via online meeting for a presentation only) 

PRESIDING: 

Ami Neff, Board Chair 
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1. Welcome and Introductions: 

Welcome and introduction were done.  No members of the public were in attendance.  District counsel, 

Rachel Anderson, was in attendance. 

2. Minutes of Board Meeting – March 18, 2025: 

Motion to approve the March 18, 2025, Board Meeting minutes, with one correction, was made by 

Trustee Lord and seconded by Trustee Rivera.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

3. Financial Information: 

A. Review Mt. Olympus Payables and Disbursements: 

Assistant GM Rohwer discussed the March cash distribution reports and addressed the check register 

in detail.  The listed categories and payables are very consistent from month to month. 

After review and discussion, a motion to approve the Mt. Olympus Payables and Disbursements was 

made by Trustee Rivera and seconded by Trustee Lord.  The motion was approved by unanimous 

vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

B. Review Central Valley (CV) Invoice: 

Assistant GM Rohwer gave a breakdown of the CV Invoice. 

After review and discussion, a motion to approve the Central Valley Invoice for $983,385.22 was made 

by Trustee Rivera and seconded by Trustee Lord.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

C. Review Financial Report: 

Assistant GM Rohwer stated that at the end of March, the District had $22.2m in reserves, which is an 

increase of $814k from the prior period.  Current assets increased by $781k in cash and receivables.  

The District’s current liabilities increased by $350k due to unearned sewer fees.  Operational revenues 

were at 21.4% of the targeted 25%.  Operational expenses are at 19.4% of the targeted 25%.  O & M 

revenues exceeded expenses by $2.2m for the year.  A breakdown of the financial summary was 

shown, and graphs were provided for Board review. 

After review and discussion, the Financial Report was accepted for filing by the Board Members. 

On a final note, Assistant GM Rohwer stated that the fieldwork has been completed for the District’s 

annual audit.  Assistant GM Rohwer stated that he has a copy of the draft audit if the Board would like 

to see it.  It is a clean audit.  Assistant GM Rohwer has finished the MD&A and has forwarded it to the 

auditors.  The auditors are compiling the financial reports and audits together. 
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Assistant GM Rohwer stated Central Valley’s audit is complete.  It is a clean audit.  A copy was 

available for board review.  Assistant GM Rohwer then discussed some of the highlights contained in 

Central Valley’s audit. 

4. Waterworth Resources Presentation – Possible Approval of Contract: 

Last month GM Demke presented to the Board a presentation regarding a software-solution developed 

by Waterworth Resources.  This company has developed a program that will give the District capital 

outlays and budgetary outlays on the fly.  The program can project long-term financial modeling, 

revenue requirements, forecast sustainability, asset reinvestment, and budgeting based on the 

District’s revenues, expenses, and the Capital Improvement Plan.  It was decided that the Board would 

like a meeting with a representative of Waterworth to give the Board more information on the software 

and answer any questions they may have. 

Mr. Grange Gordon with Waterworth joined the meeting via Zoom conference.  He gave a short 

presentation explaining how the software works and went over some of the benefits the program could 

provide to the District.  The Board had a few questions regarding who owns the data and how the data 

is transferred to Waterworth.  Mr. Gordon stated that the data is owned by the District at all times, and 

data transfer is via a secure transfer site. 

After review and discussion, a motion to approve a 3-year Subscription with Waterworth Resources at 

a cost of $33,723 for the 3 years (total), was made by Trustee Lord and seconded by Trustee Rivera.  

The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

5. Central Valley (CV) Report – Trustee Lord: 

Assistant GM Rohwer attended the CV manager’s meeting in place of GM Demke who was unable to 
attend.  The following items were discussed: 

A. Entity Managers Meeting Report 

­ Assistant GM Rohwer attended the meeting in GM Demke’s place. 

i. New UDEQ Director, Tim Davis 

ii. Utah Lake Study – Phosphorus - Ferrin Miller.  This is in regard to air deposition of 
phosphorus on Utah Lake. 

iii. Wasatch Front Quality Counsel 

iv. Title 5 Air Quality Permit – The permit has completed the 30-day public notice. 

v. Projects Update 

B. Board Meeting – GM Demke: 

­ There is a new UDEQ director at the State.  His name is Tim Davis. 

­ Items discussed at the March board meeting: 

i. Capital Projects Update 

ii. 2024 Audit Report Presentation 

iii. Annual Retirement Committee Report 
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6. Discussion and Possible Approval of Resolution 2025-0415-01 – 2025 SSMP: 

GM Demke stated that we have posted the SSMP for the required 30-day period.  During that time, 

we did not receive any public comments or questions. 

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-0415-01 - 2025 SSMP, was made by Trustee Lord and seconded 

by Trustee Rivera.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

7. Discussion and Possible Approval of the Amended MTOID Administration Policy: 

GM Demke reminded the Board that at the last board meeting, management brought the 

Administration Policy to the Board for review and possible approval.  Management has reviewed and 

updated the document. 

One of the items added was the Reserve Fund Policy.  Two items that were questioned by the Board 

were Section 2.15a and 2.15b under Compensation.  Management spoke with legal counsel and 

based on that conversation, management is recommending adding the current limit of $5,000 annually 

per Board Member and language referring to the new code on Board Compensation.  Regarding 

Section 2.15b, it is being suggested that this section be removed. 

Trustee Lord had questions about the different policies, Administrative Policy versus Purchasing 

Policy, and the Personnel Policy versus Employment Policy.  GM Demke then gave an explanation on 

those policies and also why these policies are not in a single document. 

Trustee Neff had concerns with Chapter 11, Section 2a.  Based on concerns regarding public access 

to District facilities, it was decided to delete this section. 

After review and discussion, a motion to approve the Amended MTOID Administration Policy with the 

suggested changes was made by Trustee Rivera and seconded by Trustee Lord.  The motion was 

approved by unanimous vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

8. Discussion and Possible Approval of Revisions to the MTOID Employment Policy Manual: 

GM Demke stated there are two proposed changes to the Employment Policy Manual. 

▪ Q.1. Chapter 5 – Compensation (page 9) 

▪ GM Demke:  The District will now allow employees to “bank” flexible time off hours that 

are earned for being “on call.”  These hours must be used by the end of the first pay period 

in December of the year worked and must be used before using earned vacation time. 

▪ Q.2. Chapter 15 – Grievance Procedures (page 32) 

▪ Legal Counsel, Rachel Anderson – recommended adding language to strengthen the at-

will employment status. 
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▪ The added language is as follows: 

Although the District has a disciplinary action process and an appeal 

process for serious discipline, and generally will utilize those processes 

when dealing with violations of policy or other inappropriate conduct by its 

employees, nothing contained in this Chapter is intended or may be 

construed to create any express or implied promise or agreement that any 

employee’s employment with the District may be terminated only for good 

cause, or only after progressive disciplinary action has been taken.  Either 

the employee or the District may terminate the employee’s employment 

with the District at any time and for any reason, with or without cause, and 

with or without notice. 

After review and discussion, a motion to approve the revised MTOID Employment Policy Manual was 

made by Trustee Rivera and seconded by Trustee Lord.  The motion was approved by unanimous 

vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

9. Update on Election: 

Provided to the Board was a copy of Resolution 2025-0415-02 and the Interlocal Agreement for the 

District’s 2025 Election. 

After review and discussion, a motion to approve Resolution 2025-0415-02 and the accompanying 

Interlocal Agreement for the District’s 2025 Election was made by Trustee Lord and seconded by 

Trustee Rivera.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

10. Manager’s Report: 

A. Personnel Review: 

GM Demke reported that we have four employees with anniversary dates in April. 

▪ Michael Cox – 4/6/98 – 27 years 

▪ Kevin Thomas – 4/30/12 – 13 years 

▪ Lance Titmus – 4/17/18 – 7 years 

▪ Deger Olson – 4/22/24 – 1 year 

The District is currently down 2 FTEs in the lines department.  Paul Silcox will be retiring in July 2025. 
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B. Operations Report: 

i) Update on Trunkline A Project: 

 

ii) Update on Jetter Truck Purchase: 

(a) Will be issuing a Letter of Intent to purchase the truck as authorized by the Board. 

 

C. UGFOA Conference Report: 

Assistant GM Rohwer stated this was a good conference.  They usually have motivational speakers 

come in and talk, and they started off talking about laughter as a medicine, which I thought was really, 

really good. The next day, they talked about the seven ups of happiness.  There was a legislative 

update given by Heather Anderson.  Overall, the conference was very good and worth the cost to 

attend.  Trevor and I will be attending the National GFOA conference in Washington, DC in June. 

11. Information Items (No Action Required) 

A. DISTRICT ACTIVITY REPORTS 

Copies of the District’s activity reports were provided for Board review. 

B. CENTRAL VALLEY FLOW & LOAD REPORT 

Copies of the District’s activity reports were provided for Board review. 

C. UTAH PUBLIC TREASURER’S POOL YIELD 

The Utah Public Treasurer’s Pool Yield for March 2025 was 4.424%. 
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There being no further information to come before the Board, a motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Rivera 

and seconded by Trustee Lord.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 

Votes: Keith Lord – yes 

 Ami Neff – yes 

 Michele Rivera – yes 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:36 p.m. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Ami Neff, Board Chair 



































































































































Mt Olympus Improvement District
Financial Summary

• Reserves: $22.15 million 

o Slight decrease of $23k in April.

• Current Assets decreased by $154k

o Due to a decrease in cash on hand

Current Liabilities decreased $429k

o Unearned sewer fees (billing for two months) billed in April

• Operational Revenues are at 29% of the Budget.  The cash basis target is 33% 

for the year

o Tax Revenues: 4.9%

o Sewer Revenue Fees: 33.2%

o Engineering Revenue Fees: 8.1%  

o Inspection Fees: 42.1%

o Nose on Fees: 6.8% 

o Late Fee interest and Certification Fee Revenue: 28.1%

o Misc. Revenues: 11.9%  

• Operational expenses are at 25.8% of the Budget.  The cash basis target is 33% 

for the year

o Lines Department: 21.2%.  

o IT Dept:  29.2%

o CVWRF: 23.4%  (3 of 12 periods reporting)

o Admin Dept: 26.6%

o Eng. Dept:  24.9%

• O&M Revenues exceeded Expenses by $3.0m for the year  

• Staffing – down 2 FTE in lines dept as of April 30th.

Period Ending April 2025

Reserve Name

Current 

Balance Reserve Policy

(Under) / Over  

Funded %

Operating Reserve  (365 days) 10,900,719.38$   13,544,488.00$  (2,643,769)$       80.5%

Capacity Fee Reserve 970,881.92$       970,881.92$      -$                 100.0%

MOID Capital Reserve (3yr) 6,304,610.76$     7,478,000.00$    (1,173,389)$       84.3%

CVWRF Capital Reserve (1yr) 3,992,878.62$     4,869,646.00$    (876,767)$         82.0%

Self-Funded Insurance Reserve -$                  -$                 -$                 0.0%

22,169,090.68$         

1
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2024 Rev $1,554,67 $1,492,29 $1,555,02 $1,637,95 $1,574,02 $1,548,90 $1,553,93 $1,560,47 $1,608,31 $1,571,99 $2,168,73 $3,304,73

2024 Exp $531,453 $1,164,30 $908,789 $846,803 $1,740,56 $1,061,52 $873,052 $850,491 $1,028,63 $876,735 $1,010,15 $1,030,85
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2025 Rev $1,620,37 $1,687,67 $1,704,19 $1,751,29 $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

2025 Exp $466,439 $1,385,19 $918,843 $916,073 $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-
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2023 Rev $1,356,70 $1,415,81 $1,423,16 $1,476,41 $1,424,38 $1,425,23 $1,404,18 $1,395,76 $1,448,93 $1,430,18 $3,192,94 $2,503,50

2024 Rev $1,554,67 $1,492,29 $1,555,02 $1,637,95 $1,574,02 $1,548,90 $1,553,93 $1,560,47 $1,608,31 $1,571,99 $2,168,73 $3,304,73

2025 Rev $1,620,37 $1,687,67 $1,704,19 $1,751,29 $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-
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2023 Exp $537,661 $992,022 $787,543 $1,028,47 $850,930 $878,991 $880,044 $872,243 $1,778,25 $983,609 $867,312 $1,090,78

2024 Exp $531,453 $1,164,30 $908,789 $846,803 $1,740,56 $1,061,52 $873,052 $850,491 $1,028,63 $876,735 $1,010,15 $1,030,85

2025 Exp $466,439 $1,385,19 $918,843 $916,073 $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

Prior Yr's vs Current Yr Expenses (O&M Only)
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Yr End Accruals

see prior yr accruals

Lining Project
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District Capital - 5 Year History

2021 District Capital

2022 District Capital

2023 District Capital

2024 District Capital

2025 District Capital

Trucks Generator

TV Van Upgrade

Water Tanker

VacCon Truck

Seal Parking Lot & Retro Fit TV Van
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Actual $1,620,37 $1,687,67 $1,704,19 $1,751,29 $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

2025 Budget to Actual Revenue

Year to Date

Budget Actual

Property Taxes

1
99%

102%



 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,600,000

 $1,800,000

 $2,000,000

JAN
FEB

MAR
APR

MAY
JUN

JUL
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Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Budget $472,645 $1,192,64 $1,192,64 $1,192,64 $1,192,64 $1,192,64 $1,192,64 $1,192,64 $1,192,64 $1,912,64 $1,192,64 $1,192,64

Actual $466,439 $1,385,19 $918,843 $916,073 $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

2025 Budget to Actual Expense

Year to Date

Budget Actual

116%

98.7%

Lining Project

YTD 25.8%

77%
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MT. OLYMPUS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Proposed  Amendments to the  2025 Budget

Increase/(Decrease)

 Revenues

* Increase in Taxes from $3,081,329 to $ TBD

Note: Restate taxes to equal 2025 Ut State Tax Commission certified tax revenue.  

* Decrease in Other Taxes: Collections, Fee in Lieu & RDA Taxes (12,012.00)$         

Note: Restate Taxes based upon prior year revenues received.

* Increase Interest Income from $700,000 to $826,898 126,898.00$         

Note: based on current Fed information not to decrease interest rates in first half of 2025

Revenues 114,886$              

 Expenses

* Increase Lines Budget:  Benefits- from 65,000.00$           

Note: Retirement of Paul Silcox-  Purchasing 1yr 11mnths, Payout Accrued leave-Mihlfeith

* Increase Water fees budget per Jordan Valley Water from $13,034 to $15,771 2,737.00$             

Note: 21% increase due to new Rates effective 7/1/25

67,737.00$           

Capital

* Add purchase of Waterworth Software -Preapproved in April board meeting 33,723.00$           

Note: 3 year fully refundable contract- Long-term Financial model tool

* Add purchase of Camera Cable 5,426.00$             

Note: Replace torn cable -  1,000 feet of kevlar reinforced cable

* Add purchase of SQL server software- replaces 2014 version 8,000.00$             

Note: Replaces 2014 version which is not support as of Oct 2025

47,149.00$           

*** Additions (Reductions) to Reserves -$                     

5/20/2025

Possible Amendments to Budget Highlights
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MONTHLY RUNNING MONTHLY RUNNING
RE'S TOTAL DOLLARS TOTAL

CAPACITY FEES - 2440

2021 Jan 4 4 2,992$            2,992$            
Feb 22 26 16,456$          19,448$          
Mar 21 47 15,708$          35,156$          
Apr 137 184 102,476$       137,632$       
May 34 218 25,432$          163,064$       
Jun 57 275 42,636$          205,700$       
Jul 252 527 188,496$       394,196$       
Aug 12 539 8,976$            403,172$       
Sep 1 540 748$                403,920$       
Oct 3 543 2,244$            406,164$       
Nov 281 824 210,188$       616,352$       
Dec 7 831 5,236$            621,588$       

AVERAGE 69 51,799$          621,588$       
2022 Jan 4 4 3,032$            3,032$            

Feb 10 14 7,580$            10,612$          
Mar 3 17 2,274$            12,886$          
Apr 30 47 22,740$          35,626$          
May 3 50 2,274$            37,900$          
Jun 58 108 43,964$          81,864$          
Jul 7 115 5,306$            87,170$          
Aug 39 154 29,562$          116,732$       
Sep 5 159 3,790$            120,522$       
Oct 0 159 -$                 120,522$       
Nov 17 176 12,886$          133,408$       
Dec 5 181 3,790$            137,198$       

AVERAGE 15 11,433$          137,198$       
2023 Jan 6 6 4,548$            4,548$            

Feb 3 9 2,274$            6,822$            
Mar 10 19 7,580$            14,402$          
Apr 1 20 758$                15,160$          
May 1 21 758$                15,918$          
Jun 15 36 11,370$          27,288$          
Jul 258 294 195,564$       222,852$       
Aug 36 330 27,288$          250,140$       
Sep 4 334 3,032$            253,172$       
Oct 9 343 6,822$            259,994$       
Nov 1 344 758$                260,752$       
Dec 88 432 66,704$          327,456$       

AVERAGE 36 27,288$          327,456$       
2024 Jan 4 4 3,032$            3,032$            

Feb 4 8 3,032$            6,064$            
Mar 33 41 25,014$          31,078$          
Apr 2 43 1,516$            32,594$          
May 33 76 25,014$          57,608$          
Jun 9 85 6,822$            64,430$          
Jul 3 88 2,274$            66,704$          
Aug 223 311 169,034$       235,738$       
Sep 34 345 25,772$          261,510$       
Oct 16 361 12,128$          273,638$       
Nov 4 365 3,390$            277,028$       
Dec 13 378 9,496$            286,524$       

AVERAGE 32 23,877$          286,524$       
2025 Jan 127 127 96,266$          96,266$          

Feb 1 128 758$                97,024$          
Mar 26 154 19,708$          116,732$       
Apr 8 162 6,064$            122,796$       
May 122,796$       
Jun 122,796$       
Jul 122,796$       
Aug 122,796$       
Sep 122,796$       
Oct 122,796$       
Nov 122,796$       
Dec 122,796$       

AVERAGE 41 30,699$          122,796$       
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MONTHLY RUNNING MILES RUNNING MONTHLY RUNNING MILES RUNNING
CLEANING (ft) TOTAL (ft) 5280 TOTAL (mi) TV (ft) TOTAL (ft) TOTAL (mi)

LINES MAINTENANCE MONTHLY REPORTS

2021 Jan 148,760 148,760 28.17 28.17 39,768 39,768 7.53 7.53
Feb 103,160 251,920 19.54 47.71 37,820 77,588 7.16 14.69
Mar 194,023 445,943 36.75 84.46 51,357 128,945 9.73 24.42
Apr 139,130 585,073 26.35 110.81 46,880 175,825 8.88 33.30
May 131,408 716,481 24.89 135.70 26,005 201,830 4.93 38.23
Jun 130,885 847,366 24.79 160.49 37,164 238,994 7.04 45.26
Jul 181,840 1,029,206 34.44 194.93 26,057 265,051 4.94 50.20
Aug 134,422 1,163,628 25.46 220.38 43,022 308,073 8.15 58.35
Sep 165,999 1,329,627 31.44 251.82 26,404 334,477 5.00 63.35
Oct 158,951 1,488,578 30.10 281.93 52,030 386,507 9.85 73.20
Nov 152,422 1,641,000 28.87 310.80 54,694 441,201 10.36 83.56
Dec 101,501 1,742,501 19.22 330.02 41,698 482,899 7.90 91.46

AVERAGE 145,208 27.50 40,242 7.62
2022 Jan 150,310 150,310 28.47 28.47 58,971 58,971 11.17 11.17

Feb 121,660 271,970 23.04 51.51 52,259 111,230 9.90 21.07
Mar 207,677 479,647 39.33 90.84 66,542 177,772 12.60 33.67
Apr 123,566 603,213 23.40 114.24 61,384 239,156 11.63 45.29
May 107,664 710,877 20.39 134.64 42,707 281,863 8.09 53.38
Jun 150,618 861,495 28.53 163.16 46,682 328,545 8.84 62.22
Jul 65,661 927,156 12.44 175.60 51,211 379,756 9.70 71.92
Aug 125,788 1,052,944 23.82 199.42 62,978 442,734 11.93 83.85
Sep 102,285 1,155,229 19.37 218.79 56,654 499,388 10.73 94.58
Oct 94,755 1,249,984 17.95 236.74 70,293 569,681 13.31 107.89
Nov 44,327 1,294,311 8.40 245.13 44,696 614,377 8.47 116.36
Dec 37,321 1,331,632 7.07 252.20 22,334 636,711 4.23 120.59

AVERAGE 110,969 21.02 53,059 10.05
2023 Jan 76,321 76,321 14.45 14.45 39,295 39,295 7.44 7.44

Feb 39,488 115,809 7.48 21.93 33,606 72,901 6.36 13.81
Mar 129,946 245,755 24.61 46.54 62,804 135,705 11.89 25.70
Apr 64,297 310,052 12.18 58.72 43,550 179,255 8.25 33.95
May 151,038 461,090 28.61 87.33 66,656 245,911 12.62 46.57
Jun 128,096 589,186 24.26 111.59 17,325 263,236 3.28 49.86
Jul 142,194 731,380 26.93 138.52 15,407 278,643 2.92 52.77
Aug 161,504 892,884 30.59 169.11 22,413 301,056 4.24 57.02
Sep 91,101 983,985 17.25 186.36 14,607 315,663 2.77 59.78
Oct 141,809 1,125,794 26.86 213.22 315,663 0.00 59.78
Nov 147,441 1,273,235 27.92 241.14 17,800 333,463 3.37 63.16
Dec 155,799 1,429,034 29.51 270.65 60,481 393,944 11.45 74.61

AVERAGE 119,086 22.55 35,813 6.22
2024 Jan 92,190 92,190 17.46 17.46 27,901 27,901 5.28 5.28

Feb 92,200 184,389 17.46 34.92 35,740 63,642 6.77 12.05
Mar 121,824 306,213 23.07 57.99 31,602 95,243 5.99 18.04
Apr 117,523 423,736 22.26 80.25 16,571 111,815 3.14 21.18
May 139,975 563,711 26.51 106.76 18,956 130,770 3.59 24.77
Jun 129,080 692,791 24.45 131.21 4,943 135,714 0.94 25.70
Jul 206,435 899,226 39.10 170.31 34,791 170,505 6.59 32.29
Aug 212,889 1,112,115 40.32 210.63 38,708 209,212 7.33 39.62
Sep 178,607 1,290,722 33.83 244.45 30,560 239,772 5.79 45.41
Oct 139,311 1,430,033 26.38 270.84 38,920 278,692 7.37 52.78
Nov 124,745 1,554,778 23.63 294.47 25,596 304,288 4.85 57.63
Dec 133,913 1,688,691 25.36 319.83 26,850 331,138 5.09 62.72

AVERAGE 140,724 26.65 27,595 5.23
2025 Jan 113,666 113,666 21.53 21.53 23,383 23,383 4.43 4.43

Feb 149,564 263,230 28.33 49.85 30,195 53,578 5.72 10.15
Mar 137,673 400,903 26.07 75.93 27,143 80,720 5.14 15.29
Apr 101,765 502,668 19.27 95.20 51,380 132,100 9.73 25.02
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec

AVERAGE 125,667 23.80 33,025 6.25
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Annual Cleaning (Ft) 1,763,540 1,534,911 1,813,228 1,947,035 1,923,356 1,580,167 1,742,501 1,331,632 1,429,034 1,688,691 502,668
Annual Inspections (ft) 250,175 444,363 416,441 558,752 421,677 419,509 482,899 636,711 393,944 331,138 132,100
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  › F O R  G OV E R N M E N T  › P U B L I C  T R E A S U R E R ’ S  I N V E S T M E N T  F U N D  ( P T I F )  › P T I F  R AT E S

PTIF Rates

YEAR MONTH 360 DAY 365 DAY

2025 APR 4.42561055 4.48707737

2025 MAR 4.42415891 4.48560556

2025 FEB 4.46385404 4.52585201

2025 JAN 4.48279532 4.54505636

2024 DEC 4.67105655 4.73593233

2024 NOV 4.80139663 4.86808270

2024 OCT 4.96869333 5.03770295

2024 SEP 5.25118051 5.32411357

2024 AUG 5.33177071 5.40582308

2024 JUL 5.35658219 5.43097916

2024 JUN 5.36458046 5.43908852

2024 MAY 5.35701193 5.43141487

2024 APR 5.37224012 5.44685456

2024 MAR 5.36922674 5.44379934

2024 FEB 5.40567852 5.48075739

2024 JAN 5.40658518 5.48167664



https://treasurer.utah.gov/
https://treasurer.utah.gov/for-government/
https://treasurer.utah.gov/for-government/public-treasurers-investment-fund/
https://treasurer.utah.gov/for-government/public-treasurers-investment-fund/ptif-rates/
https://treasurer.utah.gov/
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